
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 2, 2020 
 
 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 
 

AGENDA – NOVEMBER 2, 2020 
 

Conference Room                 Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuant to the Russell County Emergency Ordinance of April 
6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public 
Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of Emergency Management to 
Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal – Personnel Matters 
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. Kirby Meadows – RC Planning Commission 
 

2. Tim Addington/Melissa Parsons – NG9-1-1 Migration Program 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………A-1 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 2, 2020 
 
 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of October 5, 2020 
b. Unapproved minutes of October 27, 2020 

 
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures                                         

presented for payment….……………………….……………………………….…….A-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 
 

Coal Hauling Road Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace                Four-Year Term                   November 7, 2020 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
   
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

 
REPORTS 
 
1. Russell County CARES Fund Financial Summary………………………………...B-1 

 
2. Russell County Transfer Station Staffing Report………………………………….B-2 

 
3. RC Asst. Commonwealth Attorney Advertisement……..…………………………B-3 

 
4. Virginia Services Training Officers Prosecution (VSTOP) Grant……………….B-4 

 
5. CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband Projects…………………………B-5 

 
REQUESTS 

  
6. Russell County “CARES” Business Grants..……………………………………….B-6 

 
7. RC Erosion and Sediment Ordinance Public Hearing Date……………………...B-7  

 
8. RC BOS Annual Turkey Donation Program…………………………………………B-8 

 
9. Authorization of Part-Time Employees’ Thanksgiving and Christmas Pay…...B-9 

 
10. RC GIS System Fee………………………………………………………………………B-10 

 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 2, 2020 
 
 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………C 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….D 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... E 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..G 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………H 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...J 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….M 
• CPWMA Report…………………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Disposal Report……………………………………………………………………..O   



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) - Discussions concerning County Personnel Matters.   

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 11/2/20      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 
1. Kirby Meadows – RC Planning Commission 

 
2. Tim Addington/Melissa Parsons – NG9-1-1 Migration Program 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















































Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 11/2/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of October 5, 2020 
• Unapproved minutes of October 27, 2020 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



October 05, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, October 5, 
2020 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
prospective business interests (Project Brown and Project Jonah) in locating their facilities in Russell 
County Virginia. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 



Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
Invocation by Chair Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA WITH THE ADDITION OF AN EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION AT THE END OF 

THE MEETING 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended to include an Executive (closed) session at the end of the Board 
meeting. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 08, 2020 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the September 08, 2020 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $986,140.63, including withholdings and reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 

TIM LOVELACE RE-APPOINTED TO THE HIGHWAY AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Tim Lovelace to the Russell County Highway and Safety Committee for a two (2) year term, 
said term ending October 05, 2022. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay: None 
 

JARRED GLASS RE-APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 
Lou Wallace nominated Jarred Glass 

Steve Breeding nominated Nate Kiser 
 
Nate Kiser:  Three (3) votes - Steve Breeding, David Eaton, and Carl Rhea 
Jarred Glass:  Four (4) votes – Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
 
Jarred Glass was re-appointed to the Russell County Industrial Development Authority for a four (4) year 
term, said term ending October 05, 2024. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney advised the Board to approve the CPRWMA manpower and user 
agreement, VDH project bond resolution and a revised Project Grow revenue sharing agreement. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CPRWMA MANPOWER AND USER AGREEMENT 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority Manpower and User Agreement as 
presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION – VDH PROJECT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County Industrial Development Authority Bond Resolution for the Virginia Department 
of Health Project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



APPROVAL OF A REVISED PROJECT GROW REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a revised Project Grow Revenue Sharing Agreement with the addition of certain wording. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF RUSSELL COUNTY “CARES” BUSINESS GRANTS 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County “Cares” Business Grants subject to the criteria in the application. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF POLYCAP, LLC COMMUNITY OPPORTUNITY FUND PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Commonwealth’s Development Opportunity Fund Performance Agreement through the 
Virginia Economic Development Partnership Authority for Polycap, LLC. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR VDOT CLOSING OF RTE. 601 FOR LANDSLIDE REPAIRS 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution of Support for VDOT Closing of Rte. 601 for landslide repairs. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR VDOT ROANOKE HILL RD PROJECT 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution of Support for VDOT Project - Roanoke Hill Rd, Rte. 687 single land bridge 
construction. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
 

CRYSTAL WHITE RESIGNATION TABLED 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the resignation of Crystal White from the Russell County Planning Commission. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A $5000 DISCRETIONARY FUND FOR EACH SUPERVISOR 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a discretionary fund in the amount of $5000 per Supervisor. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) and (8) of the Code of Virginia to 
discuss prospective business interests and legal matters (Project Brown and Project Jonah) in locating 
their facilities in Russell County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 



Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 

APPROVAL TO AMEND THE AGENDA 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
amend the agenda with the additions of Project Brown and an Unnamed Project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A MORAL OBLIGATION AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT BROWN 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a moral obligation for Project Brown. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  none 
Abstain:  Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
 

APPROVAL OF $1,000,000 APPROPRIATION TO AN UNNAMED INDUSTRY SUBJECT TO THE REVENUE 
SHARING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTICIPANTS 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
agree to appropriate $1,000,000 to a currently unannounced industrial project to be held for the 
purposes of giving the unnamed industry a loan together with the additional participant localities 
subject to the finalization for a revenue sharing agreement among the participant localities of the 
project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  none 
Abstain:  Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
 

 



MOTION TO HIRE GENTRY LOCKE LAW FIRM TO REVIEW PROPOSED INDUSTRY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian to have the proposed industry transactions 
reviewed by Gentry Locke Law Firm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Tim Lovelace 
MOTION FAILED 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO RENAME MILLER CREEK BRIDGE VETERANS MEMORIAL 

BRIDGE 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution of Support to rename Miller Creek Bridge the Veterans Memorial Bridge. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                                      _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                          Chairperson 
 



October 27, 2020 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, October 27, 
2020 beginning with Executive (Closed) Session at 4:00 pm followed by the regular meeting at 5:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.   

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace ( by phone from her home due to Covid-19 quarantine) 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (Closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A) (5) – 
Discussions concerning prospective business interest (Project Jonah) in locating its facilities in Russell 
County Virginia.  
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye an Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Note:  Eric Young, County Administrator for Tazewell County was present for Executive (Closed) Session 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 

APPROVAL OF THE REGIONAL PROJECT JONAH PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Regional Project Jonah Participation Agreement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Invocation by Chair Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 



Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened Citizens Comment period, hearing none, Citizens Comment was closed. 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
 The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________                                              ____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                           Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 11/2/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s October 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s October 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s October 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• October 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 
Board of Supervisors      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 11/2/20        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 

 
Coal Hauling Road Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace                Four-Year Term                   November 7, 2020 
 

 
Staff Recommendation:  

 
Board Discretion. 





 

Board of Supervisors Action Item B-1 – B-10 
   137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

                   Meeting: 11/2/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for November 2020: 

 
REPORTS 
 
1. Russell County CARES Fund Financial Summary………………………………...B-1 

 
2. Russell County Transfer Station Staffing Report………………………………….B-2 

 
3. RC Asst. Commonwealth Attorney Advertisement……..…………………………B-3 

 
4. Virginia Services Training Officers Prosecution (VSTOP) Grant……………….B-4 

 
5. CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband Projects…………………………B-5 

 
REQUESTS 

  
6. Russell County “CARES” Business Grants..……………………………………….B-6 

 
7. RC Erosion and Sediment Ordinance Public Hearing Date……………………...B-7  

 
8. RC BOS Annual Turkey Donation Program…………………………………………B-8 

 
9. Authorization of Part-Time Employees’ Thanksgiving and Christmas Pay…...B-9 

 
10. RC GIS System Fee……………………………………………………………………...B-10 

  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


RUSSELL COUNTY                                                                                                                                             
"CARES" FUND ACCOUNT                                                                                                                                           

MARCH 1, 2020 - DECMEMBER 31, 2020                                                                                                 
Compiled:  November 2, 2020

 

RUSSELL COUNTY "CARES" RELIEF FUND TOTAL:  $4,639,052 

Town's CARES Fund (Transferred to Towns)  
Town of Lebanon $533,027
Town of Honaker $241,694
Town of Cleveland $34,329
Town of Saint Paul $30,154
Town's CARES Fund Totals $839,204

County Operational Expenses  
Medical and Protective Supplies (masks, hand sanitizer stations & refills, and gloves, etc.) $214,652
Payroll for Public Personnel (Public personnel dedicatedto Covid-19 responses - EMS, Sheriffs Office, 911 Staff, County Staff, 
Disposal Staff, Janitorial Staff, etc.) $1,355,665
Voter Registrar's Office (processing absentee ballots) $0
Health & Human Services $0
COVID-related Expenditures $7,500
Operational Expenses Totals $1,577,817

Public Facility Safety Modifications  
Cleaning Supplies & Services  (Hiring part-time staff; sanitizing meeting rooms, courts, and government facilities) $145,658
New Medical/Emergency Response  Equipment $107,250
Decontamination Equipment $165,000
Safety Modifications to Public Buildings (Touchless Entry Systems, Plexiglass Screening, Air Filters, etc.) $33,655
Public Facility Safety Modifications Totals $451,563

Business Support & Recovery  
Small Business Grant Program $260,000
PPE Kits for Businesses $0
Creation of Safe Public Spaces $167,000
Business Support & Recovery Totals $427,000



Community Assistance Programs  
Nonprofit Support  & Community Partnerships (Food Pantries) $160,000
Housing/ Homelessness $0
Volunteer Fire and Rescue Squads (5 Rescue Squads & 8 Fire Squads) $415,000
Community Assistance Programs Totals $575,000

School System Response & Adaptation $125,000

Technology & Telework  
Telework Equipment (remote meeting equipment, laptops, etc.) $52,896
Upgrade Financial Software (online bill paying) $22,000
WIFI Upgrade $0
Techology & Telwork Totals $74,896

Other Covid-19 Related Expenses  
Local match on COVID expenditures $0
Regional Jail Expenses $0
Legal  Expenses $0
Secure a Line of Credit $0
Other Covid-19 Related Expenses Totals $0

Broadband Projects  
Extend Hot Spots $16,875
Broadband Projects Totals $16,875

CARES Funds as Grant Match  
Plan to use CARES Funds to Leverage other Grant Programs $0
CARES Funds as Grant Match Totals $0

CARES Fund Account  

Total CARES Expenditures To-Date (11/2/2020) $4,087,355

CARES Fund Balance:  (11/2/2020) $551,697















 
 

 

 

Secretary of Commerce and Trade 
 

To: County and City Elected Officials 
Delivered Via: Chief Executive Officer, Manager, or Administrator 
From: Evan Feinman 

Chief Broadband Advisor 
Subject: Opportunity for Localities to Apply for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track 

Broadband 
 

Overview: 
 

The Administration has additional federal Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) available pursuant to the 
federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). The Governor seeks to apply 
CRF funds to projects that will address the need to increase broadband connectivity for distance 
learning and telework as a result of the public health emergency. 

 
The Governor’s Chief Broadband Advisor will accept proposals from localities with projects that can be 
deployed to address broadband connectivity issues during the public health emergency. These 
proposals will need to be developed and submitted quickly, and projects will be approved on a 
rolling basis until funds are fully obligated. Further, all applicants must certify that all expenses 
related to these projects will be expended and in-service by December 25th of 2020. Proposals will be 
evaluated for readiness to deploy in the time period stated and for their connection to increasing 
broadband connectivity for distance learning and telework to address the needs during the public 
health emergency. If these funds become available and the proposal is accepted, your locality will be 
notified if all or a portion of the proposed project will be awarded funds. Awarded funds will be added 
to the localities CRF allocation by the Department of Accounts. 

 
This program is unrelated to other broadband support programs offered by the Commonwealth. 
Localities are encouraged to creatively partner with other public and private partners to respond to this 
need during the public health emergency digital – whether residents lack access to broadband 
connectivity as a result of inadequate infrastructure, or as a result of residents’ inability to pay for 
broadband service – and submit projects that can be completed in the provided timeline. 

 
Examples of project proposals that will be considered include, but are not limited to the below list. 
Neither the list below nor approval of a CRF allocation by the Governor’s Chief Broadband 
Advisor represents any assurance, legal or otherwise, that the approved project complies with 
all federal guidelines related to the use of these funds. Localities are strongly encouraged to 
consult their legal counsel prior to applying for and expending federal CRF funds. Localities 

 

1 



must justify projects with the need to expand connectivity for distance learning and telework 
needs necessary during the public health emergency. 

 

1. Broadband infrastructure capable of delivering a minimum of 25Mbs/3Mbs to Virginians 
with broadband connectivity challenges. 

 
2. Broadband service connection costs for passings or property with high cost for individual 

connections, no greater than $10,000 per connection. Examples of such connections are for 
passings with long driveways, on a private road, or that have costs associated with a rail or 
highway crossing. 

 
3. Cellular transmission equipment for project areas that include residential units without or 

with limited cell service. 
 

Projects not on this list that also expand connectivity for distance learning and telework needs 
necessary during the public health emergency will also be considered. 

 
The Chief Broadband Advisor’s office will contact awardees on a rolling basis after projects are 
submitted, in recognition of the short timeframe on which these projects will need to be constructed. 

 
Guidance: 

It is extremely important to know that all of the same conditions that existed for the first and second 
round of CRF allocations to localities continue for this round of allocations. To that end, please refer to 
Secretary Layne’s July 28th, 2020, memorandum and to the federal guidance and frequently asked 
questions: 

 
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments 

 
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked- 
Questions.pdf 

 
This information is routinely updated, so guidance may have changed since you last consulted it. 
Compliance with the federal guidance is the responsibility of the locality submitting the proposal and 
failure to do so could result in disallowed expenses requiring you to repay the associated funds to the 
federal government. As stated previously, if the locality fails to repay any funds spent for nonqualifying 
expenses as required by the federal government, the state Comptroller will recover such amounts from 
future state payments to your locality via the State Aid Intercept Program. 

 
In addition to the revised federal guidance, on July 2, 2020, the U.S. Treasury’s Office of the Inspector 
General issued information related to reporting and audit requirements. Information regarding the 
audit and reporting requirements can be found at the same link provided above. Further, the State 
Comptroller’s office has sub-recipient monitoring responsibilities that will necessitate evaluation and 
additional correspondence with localities regarding the use of funds. 

 
 
 
 

2 

https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf


As a reminder, the overarching federal guidance states that these funds must be used for qualifying 
expenses of state and local governments. Specifically, the CARES Act provides that payments from the 
CRF only may be used to cover costs that: 

 
1. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); 
2. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date 

of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and 
3. were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 

2020. 
 

The federal guidance continues to state that the CRF funds can be used only for the direct costs 
associated with the response to the COVID-19 pandemic and cannot be used to address revenue 
shortfalls. CRF funds should be considered "one time" monies and should not be used for ongoing 
services and/or base operations. Because the funds must be expended by December 30, localities are 
advised not to create services with expenses beyond that period. Any expenses beyond December 30, 
2020, must be paid entirely by the locality from local funds or their partners. 

 
Requirements: Application and Certification 

Each applicant, in order to be considered for funding, must: 
 

1. complete an application, located on page 7. 
 

2. complete a certification form (Appendix C) from the locality signed by the chief executive 
officer, the chief financial officer (Treasurer), and the chief elected officer. 

 
Before signing the certification, applicants are recommended to read and understand the federal 
guidance and the frequently asked questions contained in Appendices A and B, respectively. The most 
recent information on this guidance and the frequently asked questions can be obtained at: 

 
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments 

and 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked- 
Questions.pdf 

 

Please note that the certification statement includes an acknowledgment that applicants may not 
receive reimbursement or applicants may be required to return funds to the federal government if it is 
determined that those funds were spent for purposes that do not qualify. It is important for applicants 
to understand that the burden of ensuring that all CRF funds are spent for qualifying purposes falls to 
the local government. 

 

Awardees are responsible for maintaining all necessary documentation to ensure compliance with the 
federal requirements. The State Comptroller is responsible for all sub-recipient monitoring and may 
require additional information in the future from each locality to address that responsibility. 

3 

https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf


If the federal government determines that awardees have used CRF funds for purposes that do not 
qualify, awardees must return those funds to the state promptly so that they may be returned to the 
federal government. As a condition of receiving CRF funds, awardees agree that the Commonwealth can 
use state aid intercept to recover any funds necessary for expenses that were not for a qualifying 
purpose or that were unexpended as of December 30, 2020. 

 

Submission of Application and Certification 

The Commonwealth has prepared a general application for use of these special CRF funds, which can be 
found on page 7. Applications will be accepted immediately and will be approved and reviewed on a 
rolling basis to allow awarded projects to begin construction or implementation. Applications will be 
accepted until all funds are committed. 

 
All application materials, including the complete application, the signed certification, and other 
supporting project information can be submitted by email to - 
Commonwealthconnect@governor.virginia.gov 

 
If you have any questions regarding the appropriate use of CRF funds, please refer to the U.S. Treasury 
Website and guidance. For questions about this process or technical questions about the certification 
form or the distribution of the funds, please send an email to - 
Commonwealthconnect@governor.virginia.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 



Requirements: Application and Certification 

General 

Each applicant locality, in order to be considered for funding, must: 
 

3. complete and submit an application form located on page 7; and 
 

4. submit a certification form (Appendix C) from the locality signed by the chief executive 
officer, the chief financial officer (Treasurer), and the chief elected officer. 

 
Before signing the certification, I recommend that you read and understand the federal guidance and 
the frequently asked questions contained in Appendices A and B, respectively. The most recent 
information on this guidance and the frequently asked questions can be obtained at: 

 
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments 

and 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked- 
Questions.pdf 

 
Please note that the certification statement includes an acknowledgment that applicants may not 
receive reimbursement or applicants may be required to return funds to the federal government if it is 
determined that those funds were spent for purposes that do not qualify. It is important for applicants 
to understand that the burden of ensuring that all CRF funds are spent for qualifying purposes falls to 
the local government. 

 
Awardees are responsible for maintaining all necessary documentation to ensure compliance with the 
federal requirements. The State Comptroller is responsible for all subrecipient monitoring and may 
require additional information in the future from each locality to address that responsibility. 

 
If the federal government determines that awardees have used CRF funds for purposes that do not 
qualify, awardees must return those funds to the state promptly so that they may be returned to the 
federal government. As a condition of receiving CRF funds, awardees agree that the Commonwealth can 
use state aid intercept to recover any funds necessary for expenses that were not for a qualifying 
purpose or that were unexpended as of December 30, 2020. 

 
Completion of Application 

 
The Commonwealth has prepared a general application for use of these special CRF funds, which can be 
found here on page 7. 

 
Applications will be accepted starting on Monday, October 12, 2020, so that we quickly approve 
projects on a rolling basis and allow projects to begin construction or implementation. Applications will 
be accepted until all funds are committed. 

 
 

5 

https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Frequently-Asked-Questions.pdf


Submission of Certification 
 

The certification in Appendix C contains more specific details on the responsibilities of the local 
governing body. A fillable .pdf Certification form is available in Appendix C. 

 
The signed certification form should be submitted concurrent with the application, starting on Monday, 
October 12th, 2020, to the Chief Broadband Advisor by email to: 
Commonwealthconnect@governor.virginia.gov 

 
If you have any questions regarding the appropriate use of CRF funds, please refer to the U.S. Treasury 
Website and guidance. For questions about this process or technical questions about the certification 
form or the distribution of the funds, please send an email to: 
Commonwealthconnect@governor.virginia.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 



Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband 
 

Applicant Information: 
 

1. City/County of: 
2. Completed by: 
3. Primary Point of Contact: 
4. Date: 

 
Project Information: 

 
1. Type of project seeking funding: [broadband infrastructure/broadband affordability/middle 

mile infrastructure/education/telehealth/other] 
2. Number of households to be served: 
3. Maximum Deployment Speed(s) available, including package tier offerings : 
4. Total Project cost: 
5. Match funding or in-kind resources 
6. Project partners or subcontractors (if known): 
7. Projected project completion date: 

 
Project Narrative: 

 
1. What problem does this project seek to solve: 
2.  Describe how your broadband project will facilitate distance learning, telehealth and 

telemedicine services or increase telework capabilities in response to COVID-19 public health 
precautions. Generally describe the nature and extent of the project: 

3. What will funds be used to purchase or construct: 
4. Will this project be self-sustaining or will future funding be required from sources other than 

local revenues. If so, describe plans to acquire those funds: 
5. Upon completion of this project, provide metrics detailing the efficacy of the project, including 

but not limited to: 
a. Number of households and businesses benefitting from the project: 
b. For projects addressing affordability only, number of remaining unconnected households 

due to lack of ability to pay for service students, whether through lack of access to 
broadband infrastructure or lack of ability to pay for service: 

6. Please provide any other relevant project information: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 



10. any funds provided pursuant to this certification cannot be used as a revenue replacement for 
lower than expected revenue collections from taxes, fees, or any other revenue source. 

11. any CRF funds received pursuant to this certification will not be used for expenditures for 
which the locality has received funds from any other emergency COVID-19 supplemental 
funding (whether state, federal, or private in nature) for that same expense nor may CRF 
funds be used for purposes of matching other federal funds unless specifically authorized by 
federal statute, regulation, or guideline. 

 
For counties only 

 

12. an equitable share of CRF funds received pursuant to this certification shall be shared with 
and granted to each town within its jurisdiction. Such grant(s) shall be used solely for 
necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), that were not accounted for in the budget most 
recently approved as of March 27, 2020, and that were incurred during the period that begins 
on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020. The county issuing the grant is 
responsible for the ensuring compliance with the documentation requirements required by 
this certification and shall ensure that the use of the funds meets the requirements set forth in 
this certification. 

 
We certify that we have read the above certification and our statements contained herein are true 
and correct to the best of our knowledge. 

 
 
 

By: 
Alicia McGlothlin 

By: 
Lonzo Lester 

By: 
Rebecca Dye 

Signature: Signature: Signature: 

Title: 
County Treasurer  

Title: 
County Administrator 

Title: 
Board Chairperson 

Date: Date: Date: 

 



Russell County Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband 

Applicant Information: 

1. City/County of:  Russell County 

2. Completed by: Lonzo Lester 

3. Primary Point of Contact:  Lonzo Lester 

4. Date:  10/26/2020 

 

Project Information: 

1. Type of project seeking funding: broadband infrastructure 

2. Number of households to be served:  62 

3. Maximum Deployment Speed(s) available, including package tier offerings:  

  

4. Total Project cost:  $199,645 

5. Match funding or in-kind resources:  $44,645 in matching funds from Point Broadband, LLC 

6. Project partners or subcontractors (if known):  Point Broadband, LLC 

7. Projected project completion date:  12/31/2020 

 

Project Narrative: 

1. What problem does this project seek to solve:  This project will bring fiber to the home broadband to 
62 e911 addresses in the Flats Circle section of Russell County.  This area is currently only served by 
Verizon DSL and Satellite service, both of which are well documented to fall below the 25/3 mbps 
threshold.   

2. Describe how your broadband project will facilitate distance learning, telehealth and 

telemedicine services or increase telework capabilities in response to COVID-19 public health 

precautions. Generally, describe the nature and extent of the project:  The project will provide gigabit 
fiber broadband to 62 homes that currently only have access to speeds of far less than 25 mbps.  The 

Lite 25 Mbps X 5 Mbps 54.95$                             
Basic 50 Mbps x 25 Mbps 65.95$                             
Perform 100 Mbps x 50 Mbps 70.95$                             
Performance Plus 200 Mbps x 100 Mbps 80.95$                             
Ultra 500 Mbps x 250 Mbps 100.95$                           
Extreme 1 Gbps x 500 Mbps 130.95$                           



project begins at the intersection of US 58 and local route 671 and goes ~3 miles passing 62 homes in 
the project area.  There are currently no telehealth, telemedicine or distance learning opportunities with 
the current available speeds.  The ability to work from home is also currently severely limited and will be 
virtually unlimited with respect to broadband capabilities.   

3. What will funds be used to purchase or construct:  The funds will be used for pole make ready, 
engineering & design, labor, and materials for ~3 miles of fiber construction. 

4. Will this project be self-sustaining or will future funding be required from sources other than 

local revenues. If so, describe plans to acquire those funds:  No future funds will be required. 

5. Upon completion of this project, provide metrics detailing the efficacy of the project, including 

but not limited to: 

a. Number of households and businesses benefitting from the project:  62 households and 0 businesses 

b. For projects addressing affordability only, number of remaining unconnected households 

due to lack of ability to pay for service students, whether through lack of access to 

broadband infrastructure or lack of ability to pay for service: N/A 

6. Please provide any other relevant project information:  The project is located in the CPC network and 
any revenue from the service will be part of the CPC’s profit share agreement with Point Broadband, 
LLC.   





Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband 
 
 
Applicant Information: 

 
1. City/County of:  Russell County, Virginia 
2. Completed by:  Russell County 
3. Primary Point of Contact:  Lonzo Lester 
4. Date:  10/20/20 

 
Project Information: 

 
1. Type of project seeking funding: [broadband infrastructure/broadband affordability/middle 

mile infrastructure/education/telehealth/other]:  Broadband Infrastructure. 
2. Number of households to be served:  40 
3. Maximum Deployment Speed(s) available, including package tier offerings:  10 Mbps Down x 2 

mbps Up, 25 Mbps Down x 3 Mbps Up, 50 Mbps Down x 5 Mbps Up, 100 Mbps Down x 10 Mbps 
Up, 200 Mbps Down x 15 Mbps Up 

4. Total Project cost:  $77,450.00 
5. Match funding or in-kind resources:   
6. Project partners or subcontractors (if known):  iGo Technology, Inc. 
7. Projected project completion date:  12/18/2020 

 
Project Narrative: 

 
1. What problem does this project seek to solve:  We have had citizens contact the Russell County IDA 

seeking assistance in getting broadband to a small area in eastern Russell County called Clarks 
Valley Estates.  These people need to work from home and the children from this area are in 
desperate need of broadband for virtual education since the school system has gone virtual due to 
COVID-19.  There are also some older citizens that would greatly benefit from telehealth/medicine 
that this new low latency service would provide. 

2. Describe how your broadband project will facilitate distance learning, telehealth and 
telemedicine services or increase telework capabilities in response to COVID-19 public health 
precautions. Generally, describe the nature and extent of the project:  Our fiber-fed LTE-based 
network will provide unlimited access with no caps and ultra-low latency.  These things are 
paramount when working from home, attending school in a virtual environment, or working 
with a medical situation where sharing information “real time” is needed.  There are several 
older retired citizens within this area that would benefit from the remote medical aspects this 
would offer.  The low latency mentioned earlier makes these activities much more robust and 
eliminates slowness and buffering.  DishNET & ViaSat are satellite providers that currently 
cover this area and they have data caps and do not offer the low latency required for real-time 
applications as mentioned earlier. 

3. What will funds be used to purchase or construct:  Funds will be used to construct a 150’ foot self-
supporting tower, purchase a wireless LTE base station and CPE and backhaul equipment to 
connect to an upstream provider.  We have devised two avenues for upstream bandwidth – one of 
which is fiber connectivity to the tower and the other is utilizing an 11 Ghz licensed backhaul to 
wirelessly connect to an existing iGo Technology tower on Big A Mountain.  This project will allow 
for broadband to be “totally” funded and installed at the citizens homes with no cost to them. 

4. Will this project be self-sustaining or will future funding be required from sources other than 
local revenues. If so, describe plans to acquire those funds:  This project will be self-
sustaining post grant. 



5. Upon completion of this project, provide metrics detailing the efficacy of the project, including 
but not limited to:  We understand this question as to be answered “Post” project for results.  
Our projected goal is to serve 40 homes. 

a. Number of households and businesses benefitting from the project: 
b. For projects addressing affordability only, number of remaining unconnected households 

due to lack of ability to pay for service students, whether through lack of access to 
broadband infrastructure or lack of ability to pay for service: 

6. Please provide any other relevant project information. 



Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband 
 
 
Applicant Information: 

 
1. City/County of:  Russell County, Virginia  
2. Completed by:  Russell County 
3. Primary Point of Contact:  Lonzo Lester 
4. Date:  10/20/20 

 
Project Information: 

 
1. Type of project seeking funding: [broadband infrastructure/broadband affordability/middle 

mile infrastructure/education/telehealth/other]:  Broadband Infrastructure 
2. Number of households to be served:  184 
3. Maximum Deployment Speed(s) available, including package tier offerings:  30 Down x 30 Up, 65 

Down x 65 Up, 100 Down x 100 Up, 200 Down x 200 Up. 
4. Total Project cost:  $227,096.65 
5. Match funding or in-kind resources 
6. Project partners or subcontractors (if known):  iGo Technology, Inc. 
7. Projected project completion date:  12/18/20 

 
Project Narrative: 

 
1. What problem does this project seek to solve:  Simply, the lack of broadband services.  The 

proposed area is unserved and has a high demand, even before COVID-19, to allow the citizens to 
participate in today’s digital society.  COVID-19 has pole vaulted this need with many children 
needing to attend school virtually and parents among other citizens needing to work from home.  
Medical needs have become increasingly important during the pandemic as well when it comes to 
monitoring patients remotely and minimizing hospital visits.  We feel this project is very attractive 
for our area coming in at $1,234 per passing. 

2. Describe how your broadband project will facilitate distance learning, telehealth and 
telemedicine services or increase telework capabilities in response to COVID-19 public health 
precautions. Generally, describe the nature and extent of the project:  Our fiber-rich network 
will provide unlimited access with no caps and ultra-low latency.  These things are paramount 
when working from home, attending school in a virtual environment, or working with a 
medical situation where sharing information “real time” is needed.  There are several older 
retired citizens within this area that would benefit from the remote medical aspects this 
would offer.  The low latency mentioned earlier makes these activities much more robust and 
eliminates slowness and buffering.  DishNET & ViaSat are satellite providers that currently 
cover this area and they have data caps and do not offer the low latency required for real-time 
applications as mentioned earlier. 

3. What will funds be used to purchase or construct:  Fiber Optic Cable and related Materials for 
construction, a GPON cabinet, and GPON electronics. 

4. Will this project be self-sustaining or will future funding be required from sources other than 
local revenues. If so, describe plans to acquire those funds:  This project will be self-
sustaining. 

5. Upon completion of this project, provide metrics detailing the efficacy of the project, 
including but not limited to:  We understand this question as to be answered “Post” project 
for results.  Our projected goal is to serve 184 homes 

a. Number of households and businesses benefitting from the project: 



b. For projects addressing affordability only, number of remaining unconnected households 
due to lack of ability to pay for service students, whether through lack of access to 
broadband infrastructure or lack of ability to pay for service: 

6. Please provide any other relevant project information: 



IDA Awarded $5,000 each     10 Applications   $50,000 
 
Gerald Sharp dba Gerald Sharp PC., 1114 E. Main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Jordan Smith & Tyler Castle dba Next Fitness Club LLC., 1806 E. Main St., Lebanon, VA  24266 
Preston Ball dba Preston Ball Photography, 155 Grandville Meadows Dr., Lebanon, VA 24266 
Robert Weatherly dba Lebanon Physical Therapy & Rehab. Services 272 Highland Dr. Lebanon, VA   
Robin Fields dba Robin’s Nest, 23271 US Hwy 19, Cedar Bluff, VA  24609 
Thomas Luke Stillwell dba Luke Stillwell Optometrist PC., 1050 Regional Park Rd.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Thomas Luke Stillwell dba Mountain View Rental Properties LLC., 7831 Mountain Rd.  Cedar Bluff, VA  
Tim Ball dba Tim Ball Farming, Inc., 245 Oak Circle Dr.  Rosedale, VA  24280 
Vincent J. Gilmer dba Vincent’s Vineyard   2313 E. Main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
 
 
 
 
 

Russell County BOS    Awarded        $5,000 each       14 Applications  $60,000 
  
Bailey Engineering, P.O. Box 155, Rosedale, VA 24280 
Barbara’s His & Hers Salon, 10 Memorial Drive, Castlewood, VA  24224 
Clatterbuck Pavement Markings, Inc., 3280 Cleveland Rd., Cleveland, VA  24225 
Quality Paving Inc., P.O. Box 88, Swords Creek, VA 24649 
Dirt Daubers, 2977 High Point Rd., Castlewood, VA  24224 
Flower Country, 6 Memorial Drive, Castlewood, VA  24224 
J & J Trash Waste Management, Rosedale, VA  24280 
Rexanna’s Family Hair Care, 465 Swords Creek Rd., Honaker, VA  24260 
Honaker Florist LLC, 429 South Railroad Ave., Honaker, VA  24260 
Honaker Wholesale LLC., 435 South Railroad Ave., Honaker, VA  24260 
Lonesome Pine Brewing Co., 15 East Main Street, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Something Special, 11668 US Highway 19, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Swords Creek Cut & Style, 7336 Swords Creek Rd.  Swords Creek, VA  24649 
Wright Way Cleaning, 62 Woosley St., Lebanon, VA  24266 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Rescue Squads Awarded $35,000 each      $175,000 
Castlewood Rescue Squad       
Cleveland Life Saving Crew 
Dante Rescue Squad 
Lebanon Lifesaving Crew 
New Garden Rescue Squad 
 
Fire Departments Awarded $30,000 each      $240,000 
Dante Fire Department  
Honaker Vol. Fire Dept. 
Lebanon Vol. Fire Dept. 
Belfast-Rosedale Fire Dept. 
Cleveland Vol. Fire Dept. 
Copper Creek Moccasin Fire 
St. Paul Fire and Rescue 
Castlewood Fire Department 
 
Food Ministry Awarded   Awarded  $22,000 each      $110,000 
 
Roger E. Jessee      Woody Scott     762-7812, 623-3484 
Word of Victory Rod Wicker  701-2511 
Elk Garden  Brooke Atchley  540-599-4071  Barbara Parker  971-6724 
Star Ministry  Amanda Thomas  276-451-1172 
Splash Ministry  Carolyn Puckett 991-6044 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Lebanon  $5,000 each        33 Applications    $165,000 
 
Amber Franks dba Pat’s Kountry Diner 
Debbie Smith dba Debbie’s Hair 
Gabriella Range dba The Local 
James Range dba Crossfit Beartown 
Janet McGlothlin dba Top Line Advertising 
Jefferson Steffey dba J & V’s Corner Diner 
Jodi Campbell dba The Veritas Nurturing Center 
Kathern J. Moore dba Perfect Petals 
Kayla Goff Moran dba RKT Hair Studio 
Mark Smith dba Shug’s Place 
Mary Rasnake dba Mary & Company 
Rebecca Rose dba Wild Rose Hair 
Becky’s Cut & Style-Becky Gilbert 
Jimmy’s Detailing-Jimmy Honaker 
Kegley Service Center, Inc.-Betty Kegley 
The Artist’s Loft-Edward Young 
Randi’s Glamour Connection-Randi Sykes 
Street Drug Corp.-Jared Street 
Melody Acres Farm-Vincent Gilmer 
Pizza Town-Marisa Graziano 
Appalachian Meats-Victoria Gent 
John Stanley Attorney At Law 
Clark Print Shop-Devin Clark 
El Campesino-Fernando Onate 
Designs by JLeigh-Jamie Bradley 
Nextdoor Drug, PC-Jackie Hackney & Nicole Lawson 
Best Life Physical Therapy, Inc.,- Kaitlin Dodi-Monk 
Salon Platinum-Justin Gobble 
The Lebanon News-Jerry Lark 
Extol Corp Inc-Larry & Wanda Hughes 
Woodz-N-Waterz Taxidermy-Joshua Ward 
Fields Restaurants, LLC-Tim Fields 

Tokyo Japanese Restaurant-Wei Kang Hau 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Honaker     $5,000 each            12 Applications           $60,000  
 
Diane Fuller dba Honey Bea’s Café, 392 South Railroad Honaker, VA 24260 
Mariano Romano, K & M Romano Inc. dba Momma Mia, 412 Putnam Rd., Honaker, VA  24260 
Modern Chevrolet Sales, 5600 Redbud Hwy, Honaker, VA  24260 
T’s Country Store and Feed, 5888 Redbud Hwy., Honaker, VA  24260 
DR Price 
The Farmers Table 
Tiger Stop 
McFaddin & Associates 
Honaker Tobacco Outlet 
Honaker Animal Health 
Barnhart Chiropractic 
Whitt Insurance Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Russell County BOS          Pending Grants_       $5,000     28 Applications     
Authentic Appalachian Landworks, 776 Red Oak Ridge Rd., Castlewood, VA  24224 
Ball Coal Company, Inc. 245 Oak circle Dr., Rosedale, VA  24280 (Tim Ball, owes $1,171.83,  got IDA 
Loan as Tim Ball Farming, Inc, ) 
Barton’s Service Center, 8335 Redbud Hwy., Honaker, VA  24260 
Bill’s Carport’s and Buildings, 4382 Swords Creek Rd, Swords Creek, VA  24649 
Bostic Tucker & Co., PC, Main St., Lebanon, VA  24266 
Campbell Storage & Rental, 7809 Green Valley Rd., Lebanon, VA  24266 
David Shelton Trucking Co., Inc., 1965 Pine Creek Rd.. Swords Creek, VA  24649 
David Mullins Wealth Management, 603 Fairview Lane, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Elk Garden Aluminum, 8043 Mountain R., Cedar Bluff, VA  24609 
Extol Corp. dba Glamour Tan, 20 Russell St., Lebanon, VA  24266  (Town of Lebanon) 
Highlands Ambulance Service, P.O. Box  1017, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Honaker Tire Service,  P.O. Box  1508, Honaker, VA  24260 
Jared Shelton Trucking, LLC 37 Alpha St., Swords Creek, VA  24649 
Jeff Shelton Trucking, 90 Alpha St.,  Swords Creek, VA  24649 
JordyKy Trucking, Inc., P.O. Box 203, Cedar Bluff, VA  24609 
Lebanon Discount Tire  2106 East Main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Maggie Chafin Salon, 1796 East Main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Photography by Kalyn, 571 McFarlane Lane, Rosedale, VA  24280 
Robin’s Nest, PO Box 9, Rosedale, VA  24280  (got IDA loan) 
Rock Ridge Vapor LLC, 1800 East Main St., Lebanon, VA 24266 
Romanos II Restaurant, Inc., 2 Memorial Drive, Castlewood, VA  24224    
Shortt Accounting Service, Inc., P. O. Box 1575, Main St. Lebanon, VA  24266 
Starnes Refrigeration & A/C, Inc., 4082 US Hwy 19, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Stinson Heating & Cooling, Inc, 11 West Main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
SWVA Mechanical LLC, 623 Oak Circle Dr., Rosedale, VA  24280 
The Christian Center, Inc., Main St. Lebanon, VA  24266  ( Town of Lebanon) 
Wayne Musick Auto Repair, 1930 West main St.  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Wallace Furniture and Hardware, Inc., 5711 Redbud Hwy., Honaker, VA  24260 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Farms  Pending Grants      $5,000 17 Applications 
Banner’s Farm Inc., P.O. Box 100, Castlewood, VA  24224 
Bar-C Farms, 7809 Green Valley Rd., Lebanon, Va  24266 
Big A Mtn. Farms, 8094 Redbud Hwy., Honaker, VA  24260 
Circle K Farms, LLC,  P.O. Box 2921,  Lebanon, VA  24266 
Derek Hicks, P. O. 4021, Castlewood, VA  24225    
DJB Cattle, 47 Trigg Dr., Lebanon, VA  24266 
Dry Branch Cattle Company, Inc., P.O. Box 92, Rosedale, VA  24280 
Green Valley Genetics, 7325 Green Valley Rd., Lebanon, VA  24266 
Kiser’s Farm, 3350 Jessee’s Mill Rd., Cleveland, VA  24225 
Powers Farm, 361 Sink Hole Lane, Cleveland, VA  24224 
Richard Bostic, P.O. Box 1568, Honaker, VA 24260 
Rocking B Cattle Company, LLC, 245 Oak Circle Dr., Rosedale, VA  24280 
RR Farm, 2691 Seven Springs Hollow Road, Castlewood, VA  24224 
Sykes Livestock, LLC, P.O. Box 1985, Lebanon, VA  24266 
Tim Ball Farming, Inc, 245 Oak Circle Dr., Rosedale, VA 24280  (got IDA Loan) 
Tony Browning, 3995 Memorial Dr., Castlewood, VA  24224 
3M Cattle, 2417 Cleveland Rd., Cleveland, VA  24225 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





iGIS Functionality Descriptions 
Web GIS that eliminates the hosting hassles 

Phone (540) 239-0950 | www.InteractiveGIS.com | info@interactivegis.com 
Be known for your dependable online maps & data 

Element Description 
Login Russell County does not permit a general public access to the site; it only 

allows for registered users.  The login screen and the associated 
functionality directs the user to the initial map view.  The interface contains 
tiered security and availability of information depending on level of access 
assigned to the username.  This becomes more evident as additional 
services such as the Building Permits and Inspection, Streets Maintenance, 
Student Enrollment Projects, and other add-ons get integrated into the 
system  

Search The system includes Quick Actions and Quick Themes which enable the 
users to quickly zoom to a predefined area and to automatically turn on all 
the layers of a particular theme. 
There are three types of searches: 

• Quick Search 
• Custom Search 
• Proximity Search 

Map Layers Functionality includes the ability to turn layers off and on.  Results are 
immediate and does not require a complete redraw of the system.  Base 
map layers, depending on availability, include: 

• 2019 VGIN Aerials 
• 2015 VGIN Aerials 
• 2011 VGIN Aerials 
• 2007 VGIN Aerials 
• USGS Topographical Maps 
• Others 

The Map Layers window also includes a dropdown selection for all layers in 
the system and the ability to search for a layer by typing in part or all of a 
layers name.  New layers can be added at any time at no additional cost. 
The tool icon enables the user to set the opacity and whether or not to add 
the layer to the legend. 

Print The enhanced printing includes page sizes: 
• 8.5x11 
• 11x17 
• 22x34 

Scaled PDF outputs with legend, north arrow, and map title.   Custom 
drawings are all printable. 

Measure Tool Functionality includes the ability to measure linear and area.  Linear 
information is returned in miles, feet, or meters.  Area measurements are 
returned in acres or yards.  

Identify Tool Functionality includes the ability to identify and return information about a 
selected feature.  Allows the user to select adjoining parcels with the click 
of a button.  Functionality includes exports to Comma Separated Value 
(CSV) file format and KML Google Earth for 3D Viewing.  The identify tool 
automatically links to the land record card and Just the Facts. 

Draw Enhanced markups now include the ability to draw: 
• Points, Lines, and Polygons 
• Highlights 



iGIS Functionality Descriptions 
Web GIS that eliminates the hosting hassles 

Phone (540) 239-0950 | www.InteractiveGIS.com | info@interactivegis.com 
Be known for your dependable online maps & data 

• Custom Text & Various Shapes 
All drawn features are printable 

Legend System now includes a legend that can be turned on or off and the user can 
select which layers appear in the legend 

Geolocation 
Tools 

The geolocation tool enables the user to: 
• Place a point in the Map View of where the user’s GPS or ISP is 

currently located. 
o If using the system on a phone it places a point on the map 

where the user is currently positioned. 
• Turn on the BING aerial view 
• Turn on the Google Street view 
• Enter a lat-lon decimal degree value with which to zoom to 

Just the Facts Non-mapping tool to query parcel data. 
Demographics Search the US Census Current ACS 5-Year Survey.  Query and map more 

than 4,100 socio-economic variables that overlay the GIS data.   
Help Tools Customized online Help and system documentation. 

iGIS Integrations Fully web enabled GIS dashboard ready to add-on additional functionalities. 
 

Various Map Views 
 

  
Figure 1 - Map View Figure 2 - Voting Precincts 

  
Figure 3 - FEMA Flood Mapping Layer Figure 4 - Land Cover Layer 

 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

 

 
November 2, 2020 
 
Virginia Housing Director  
601 South Belvidere Street 
Richmond, VA 23220 
 
Director, 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors has partnered with the Cumberland Plateau 
Regional Housing Authority (CPRHA) and fully supports this grant application.   
 
The County is developing a creative approach to workforce housing development in 
conjunction with revitalization of the Dante Community.  This workforce housing project 
will greatly improve the overall community of Dante while eliminating housing shortages 
within this coalfield community.  A master plan has been developed to create a coalfield 
community transformation that could be modeled throughout other communities in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
Please accept this Letter of Support on behalf of the locality and thank you in advance 
for your favorable consideration of this grant application. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rebecca Dye,                                                                                                 
Chairperson                                                                                                               
County of Russell Virginia     







Tracy
Highlight





Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight






















































































	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 11/2/20      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Board Appointments.pdf
	Staff Recommendation:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 11/2/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Application (1) -CARES -broadband (Russell County - iGo Wireless).pdf
	Page 7 - Wireless Application.pdf
	Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband
	Project Information:
	Project Narrative:


	Application (2) -CARES-broadband (Russell County - iGo Fiber).pdf
	guidlines-application-cares-act-broadband 7 (Fiber).pdf
	Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband
	Project Information:
	Project Narrative:


	guidlines-application-cares-act-broadband.pdf
	Overview:
	must justify projects with the need to expand connectivity for distance learning and telework needs necessary during the public health emergency.
	Guidance:
	Requirements: Application and Certification
	Submission of Application and Certification
	Completion of Application
	Submission of Certification
	Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband
	Project Information:
	Project Narrative:
	Appendix A
	Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments Updated June 30, 20201
	Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency
	Costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020
	Costs incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020
	Nonexclusive examples of eligible expenditures
	Nonexclusive examples of ineligible expenditures3


	Appendix B: Coronavirus Relief Fund – Frequently Asked Questions July 8, 2020
	Coronavirus Relief Fund Frequently Asked Questions Updated as of July 8, 2020
	Eligible Expenditures
	Are governments required to submit proposed expenditures to Treasury for approval?
	The Guidance says that funding can be used to meet payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public heal...
	The Guidance says that a cost was not accounted for in the most recently approved budget if the cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, allotment, or allocation. What would qualify as a “substantia...
	May a State receiving a payment transfer funds to a local government?
	May a unit of local government receiving a Fund payment transfer funds to another unit of government?
	Is a Fund payment recipient required to transfer funds to a smaller, constituent unit of government within its borders?
	Are recipients required to use other federal funds or seek reimbursement under other federal programs before using Fund payments to satisfy eligible expenses?
	Are there prohibitions on combining a transaction supported with Fund payments with other CARES Act funding or COVID-19 relief Federal funding?
	Are States permitted to use Fund payments to support state unemployment insurance funds generally?
	Are recipients permitted to use Fund payments to pay for unemployment insurance costs incurred by the recipient as an employer?
	The Guidance states that the Fund may support a “broad range of uses” including payroll expenses for several classes of employees whose services are “substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” What ar...
	In some cases, first responders and critical health care workers that contract COVID-19 are eligible for workers’ compensation coverage. Is the cost of this expanded workers compensation coverage eligible?
	If a recipient would have decommissioned equipment or not renewed a lease on particular office space or equipment but decides to continue to use the equipment or to renew the lease in order to respond to the public health emergency, are the costs asso...
	May recipients provide stipends to employees for eligible expenses (for example, a stipend to employees to improve telework capabilities) rather than require employees to incur the eligible cost and submitfor reimbursement?
	May Fund payments be used for COVID-19 public health emergency recovery planning?
	Are expenses associated with contact tracing eligible?
	Towhatextentmayagovernmentuse Fundpaymentstosupporttheoperations of privatehospitals?
	May payments from the Fund be used to assist individuals with enrolling in a government benefit program for those who have been laid off due to COVID-19 and thereby lost health insurance?
	May recipients use Fund payments to facilitate livestock depopulation incurred by producers due to supply chain disruptions?
	Would providing a consumer grant program to prevent eviction and assist in preventing homelessness be considered an eligible expense?
	May recipients create a “payroll support program” for public employees?
	May recipients use Fund payments to cover employment and training programs for employees that have been furloughed due to the public health emergency?
	May recipients use Fund payments to provide emergency financial assistance to individuals and families directly impacted by a loss of income due to the COVID-19 public health emergency?
	The Guidance provides that eligible expenditures may include expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures. What is meant by a “small business,” and is t...
	The Guidance provides that expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the public health emergency, such as expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interr...
	May Fund payments be used to assist impacted property owners with the payment of their property taxes?
	May Fund payments be used to replace foregone utility fees? If not, can Fund payments be used as a direct subsidy payment to all utility account holders?
	The Guidance includes workforce bonuses as an example of ineligible expenses but provides that hazard pay would be eligible if otherwise determined to be a necessary expense. Is there a specific definition of “hazard pay”?
	The Guidance provides that ineligible expenditures include “[p]ayroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” Is this intended to relate...
	The Guidance provides that ineligible expenditures include “[p]ayroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” Is this intended to relate...
	May counties pre-pay with CARES Act funds for expenses such as a one or two-year facility lease, such as to house staff hired in response to COVID-19?
	Must a stay-at-home order or other public health mandate be in effect in order for a government to provide assistance to small businesses using payments from the Fund?
	Should States receiving a payment transfer funds to local governments that did not receive payments directly from Treasury?
	May a State impose restrictions on transfers of funds to local governments?
	If a recipient must issue tax anticipation notes (TANs) to make up for tax due date deferrals or revenue shortfalls, are theexpensesassociated withtheissuanceeligible uses of Fund payments?
	May recipients use Fund payments to expand rural broadband capacity to assist with distance learning and telework?
	Arecostsassociatedwithincreasedsolidwastecapacityaneligibleuse of paymentsfromthe Fund?
	May payments from the Fund be used to cover across-the-board hazard pay for employees working during a state of emergency?
	May Fund payments be used for expenditures related to the administration of Fund payments by a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government?
	May recipients use Fund payments to provide loans?
	May Fundpayments be usedforexpendituresnecessarytoprepareforafuture COVID-19 outbreak?
	May funds be used to satisfy non-federal matching requirements under the Stafford Act?
	Must a State, local, or tribal government require applications to be submitted by businesses or individuals before providing assistance using payments from the Fund?
	May Fund payments be provided to non-profits for distribution to individuals in need of financial assistance, such as rentrelief?
	May recipients use Fund payments to remarket the recipient’s convention facilities and tourism
	May a State provide assistance to farmers and meat processors to expand capacity, such to cover overtime for USDA meat inspectors?
	The guidance provides that funding may be used to meet payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services aresubstantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public h...
	May Fund payments be used to cover increased administrative leave costs of public employees who couldnotteleworkintheevent of astayathomeorderoracase of COVID-19 intheworkplace?
	Do governments have to return unspent funds to Treasury?
	What records must be kept by governments receiving payment?
	May recipients deposit Fund payments into interest bearing accounts?
	May governments retain assets purchased with payments from the Fund?
	What rules apply to the proceeds of disposition or sale of assets acquired using payments from the Fund?
	Are Fund payments to State, territorial, local, and tribal governments considered grants?
	Are Fund payments considered federal financial assistance for purposes of the Single Audit Act?
	Are Fund payments subject to other requirements of the Uniform Guidance?
	Is there a Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number assigned to the Fund?
	If a State transfers Fund payments to its political subdivisions, would the transferred funds count toward the subrecipients’ total funding received from the federal government for purposes of the Single Audit Act?
	Are recipients permitted to use payments from the Fund to cover the expenses of an audit conducted under the Single Audit Act?
	If a government has transferred funds to another entity, from which entity would the Treasury Department seek to recoup the funds if they have not been used in a manner consistent with section 601(d) of the Social Security Act?


	Appendix C Certification Form
	by
	For counties only


	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 11/2/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	guidlines-application-cares-act-broadband.pdf
	Overview:
	must justify projects with the need to expand connectivity for distance learning and telework needs necessary during the public health emergency.
	Guidance:
	Requirements: Application and Certification
	Submission of Application and Certification
	Completion of Application
	Submission of Certification
	Application for CARES Act Funding to Fast Track Broadband
	Project Information:
	Project Narrative:
	Appendix A
	Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments Updated June 30, 20201
	Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency
	Costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020
	Costs incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020
	Nonexclusive examples of eligible expenditures
	Nonexclusive examples of ineligible expenditures3


	Appendix B: Coronavirus Relief Fund – Frequently Asked Questions July 8, 2020
	Coronavirus Relief Fund Frequently Asked Questions Updated as of July 8, 2020
	Eligible Expenditures
	Are governments required to submit proposed expenditures to Treasury for approval?
	The Guidance says that funding can be used to meet payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public heal...
	The Guidance says that a cost was not accounted for in the most recently approved budget if the cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, allotment, or allocation. What would qualify as a “substantia...
	May a State receiving a payment transfer funds to a local government?
	May a unit of local government receiving a Fund payment transfer funds to another unit of government?
	Is a Fund payment recipient required to transfer funds to a smaller, constituent unit of government within its borders?
	Are recipients required to use other federal funds or seek reimbursement under other federal programs before using Fund payments to satisfy eligible expenses?
	Are there prohibitions on combining a transaction supported with Fund payments with other CARES Act funding or COVID-19 relief Federal funding?
	Are States permitted to use Fund payments to support state unemployment insurance funds generally?
	Are recipients permitted to use Fund payments to pay for unemployment insurance costs incurred by the recipient as an employer?
	The Guidance states that the Fund may support a “broad range of uses” including payroll expenses for several classes of employees whose services are “substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” What ar...
	In some cases, first responders and critical health care workers that contract COVID-19 are eligible for workers’ compensation coverage. Is the cost of this expanded workers compensation coverage eligible?
	If a recipient would have decommissioned equipment or not renewed a lease on particular office space or equipment but decides to continue to use the equipment or to renew the lease in order to respond to the public health emergency, are the costs asso...
	May recipients provide stipends to employees for eligible expenses (for example, a stipend to employees to improve telework capabilities) rather than require employees to incur the eligible cost and submitfor reimbursement?
	May Fund payments be used for COVID-19 public health emergency recovery planning?
	Are expenses associated with contact tracing eligible?
	Towhatextentmayagovernmentuse Fundpaymentstosupporttheoperations of privatehospitals?
	May payments from the Fund be used to assist individuals with enrolling in a government benefit program for those who have been laid off due to COVID-19 and thereby lost health insurance?
	May recipients use Fund payments to facilitate livestock depopulation incurred by producers due to supply chain disruptions?
	Would providing a consumer grant program to prevent eviction and assist in preventing homelessness be considered an eligible expense?
	May recipients create a “payroll support program” for public employees?
	May recipients use Fund payments to cover employment and training programs for employees that have been furloughed due to the public health emergency?
	May recipients use Fund payments to provide emergency financial assistance to individuals and families directly impacted by a loss of income due to the COVID-19 public health emergency?
	The Guidance provides that eligible expenditures may include expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures. What is meant by a “small business,” and is t...
	The Guidance provides that expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the public health emergency, such as expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interr...
	May Fund payments be used to assist impacted property owners with the payment of their property taxes?
	May Fund payments be used to replace foregone utility fees? If not, can Fund payments be used as a direct subsidy payment to all utility account holders?
	The Guidance includes workforce bonuses as an example of ineligible expenses but provides that hazard pay would be eligible if otherwise determined to be a necessary expense. Is there a specific definition of “hazard pay”?
	The Guidance provides that ineligible expenditures include “[p]ayroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” Is this intended to relate...
	The Guidance provides that ineligible expenditures include “[p]ayroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.” Is this intended to relate...
	May counties pre-pay with CARES Act funds for expenses such as a one or two-year facility lease, such as to house staff hired in response to COVID-19?
	Must a stay-at-home order or other public health mandate be in effect in order for a government to provide assistance to small businesses using payments from the Fund?
	Should States receiving a payment transfer funds to local governments that did not receive payments directly from Treasury?
	May a State impose restrictions on transfers of funds to local governments?
	If a recipient must issue tax anticipation notes (TANs) to make up for tax due date deferrals or revenue shortfalls, are theexpensesassociated withtheissuanceeligible uses of Fund payments?
	May recipients use Fund payments to expand rural broadband capacity to assist with distance learning and telework?
	Arecostsassociatedwithincreasedsolidwastecapacityaneligibleuse of paymentsfromthe Fund?
	May payments from the Fund be used to cover across-the-board hazard pay for employees working during a state of emergency?
	May Fund payments be used for expenditures related to the administration of Fund payments by a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government?
	May recipients use Fund payments to provide loans?
	May Fundpayments be usedforexpendituresnecessarytoprepareforafuture COVID-19 outbreak?
	May funds be used to satisfy non-federal matching requirements under the Stafford Act?
	Must a State, local, or tribal government require applications to be submitted by businesses or individuals before providing assistance using payments from the Fund?
	May Fund payments be provided to non-profits for distribution to individuals in need of financial assistance, such as rentrelief?
	May recipients use Fund payments to remarket the recipient’s convention facilities and tourism
	May a State provide assistance to farmers and meat processors to expand capacity, such to cover overtime for USDA meat inspectors?
	The guidance provides that funding may be used to meet payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services aresubstantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public h...
	May Fund payments be used to cover increased administrative leave costs of public employees who couldnotteleworkintheevent of astayathomeorderoracase of COVID-19 intheworkplace?
	Do governments have to return unspent funds to Treasury?
	What records must be kept by governments receiving payment?
	May recipients deposit Fund payments into interest bearing accounts?
	May governments retain assets purchased with payments from the Fund?
	What rules apply to the proceeds of disposition or sale of assets acquired using payments from the Fund?
	Are Fund payments to State, territorial, local, and tribal governments considered grants?
	Are Fund payments considered federal financial assistance for purposes of the Single Audit Act?
	Are Fund payments subject to other requirements of the Uniform Guidance?
	Is there a Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number assigned to the Fund?
	If a State transfers Fund payments to its political subdivisions, would the transferred funds count toward the subrecipients’ total funding received from the federal government for purposes of the Single Audit Act?
	Are recipients permitted to use payments from the Fund to cover the expenses of an audit conducted under the Single Audit Act?
	If a government has transferred funds to another entity, from which entity would the Treasury Department seek to recoup the funds if they have not been used in a manner consistent with section 601(d) of the Social Security Act?


	Appendix C Certification Form
	by
	For counties only


	RC CARES Fund Account Balance 110220.pdf
	Sheet1




